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WIT H  sincere regret we place on record the death  
cn  June 3 rd , a t his residence, Bath S t., Glasgow, 
of M r. D avid J. D unlop, sh ipbu ilder and 

engineer, P o rt Glasgow. Deceased, who was in  his 
7 3 rd year, had  been a ilin g  for some tim e ; but only se ri­
ously ill for a  few days p rio r to h is decease. W ith  h is 
passing the ranks of Clyde sh ipbuilders and engineers 
have been deprived of an  able, well-known, and h ig h ly  
respected m em ber; and sh ipyard  workmen of an  employer 
who was ever considerate for th e ir  best welfare.

Born in  Mexico C ity  in 1838, where h is fa ther—a M exi­
can m erchant—was a t th a t tim e resident, M r. Dunlop 
w hile s till quite  young was brought to Glasgow, and at 
the H ig h  School of th a t c ity , as well as a t the Collegiate 
School, L iverpool, received an  excellent classical and 
m athem atical education. L eaving the Collegiate School 
—where he had  as school-mate M r. G. W. Wolff, of Messrs. 
H a rlan d  & Wolff, Belfast—he became apprenticed to the 
firm of Messrs. W alter Neilson & Co., Locomotive E n g in ­
eers, Hyde P ark  Street, Glasgow. After com pleting his 
tim e he received an  appointm ent to proceed to Java  w ith 
a consignm ent of su g ar p lan t and superin tend  its erection 
and completion. In  connection w ith  the s ta rtin g  of the 
p lan t he had to design shallow -draft barges, w ith  move- 
able propellers, by w hich the cane was brought to the m ill. 
R etu rn ing  to th is country in  1862, and hav ing  long before 
determ ined upon m arine eng ineering  as a profession, he 
joined the firm of R andolph, E lder & Co., Centre Street, 
Glasgow. Amongst other work for w hich M r. D unlop 
was responsible w ith th is firm was the  construction, for 
the French Government, of a  floating dock a t Saigon, two 
years being thus occupied. On re tu rn in g  to Glasgow 
he was a t once enlisted  on the staff of Messrs. John E lder 
& Co.—evolved from the firm of R andolph , E lder & Co. 
•—who were then proceeding to lay  out new sh ipbu ild ing  
a n d  eng ineering  works a t Fairfie ld , Govan. So satisfied 
■was M r. E lder w ith  the ab ility  of young Mr. Dunlop that 
Tie m ade him h is p rin c ip a l assistan t and placed him  in 
ch arg e  of the design ing  and erecting  of the offices, sh ip ­
y a rd , and workshops. I t  speaks well for the ab ility  and 
prescience w ith w hich th is im portant work was carried  
out th a t in all essentials the establishm ent of to-day— 
capable as it is of dealing  w ith  the largest and heaviest 
of sh ipbu ild ing  and eng ineering  contracts in  accordance 
w ith  the best m odern practice—was com prehended in  the 
general lines la id  down by M r. Dunlop so m any years 
ago.

After the death  of M r. John E lder in  1869, Mr. Dunlop 
—who re ta ined  a life-long adm iration  for h is early  c h ie f -  
jo ined M r. Jam es L . Cunliffe (who was also tra in ed  in 
the E lder Works) in tak in g  over the sh ipyard  a t Port 
Glasgow, then owned by Law rence H ill & Co. U nder 
the firm name of Cunliffe & D unlop, business was begun 
in  1870, and  the partn e rsh ip  continued u n til 1881, when 
M r. Cunliffe re tired , leaving M r. Dunlop sole partner. 
U nder the  a ltered  title  of D. J. Dunlop & Co., the business 
has ever since been carried  on, M r. Dunlop con tinuing
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almost till the end to superin tend in  deta il all its opera­
tions. He specialised in various classes of vessels : fine 
steam yachts at first being produced, hut la te r and more 
notably oil-tank steam ers, cable-laying steam ers, light- 
d ra ft vessels for river work, and high-class passenger 
steam ers of medium  size. Mr. Dunlop was among the 
first to recognise the possibilities of the o il- ta n k er; and he 
bu ilt for the Anglo-Am erican O il Co. the first vessels 
which dem onstrated the superio rity  of the system of c a rry ­
ing oil in bulk over th a t of ca rry in g  it in barrels.

He also bu ilt the first lig h t-d ra ft vessels which n av i­
gated the river N ig e r ;  showed the immense commercial 
potentialities of the region, and led to the form ation of 
the Royal N ig er Co. Several of the earliest fru it-ca rry ­
ing  steam ers and some of the finest cable-laying steam ers 
a re  also to Mr. D unlop’s cred it, one of these la tte r class 
being the M onarch, bu ilt in 1884 to the o rder of the 
B ritish  Government, and still doing active service in 
cable-repairing  round the B ritish  coasts. Not a few 
ingenious devices connected w ith sh ipbu ild ing  and m arine 
engineering  have Mr. Dunlop as th e ir au thor, includ ing  
“ D unlop’s M arine E ng ine  Governor,”  in w hich the d is­
tin g u ish in g  feature consists of autom atic control of the 
engines by sensitive connection w ith the immersed and 
emerged condition of the propeller at the stern. Mr. 
Dunlop was alw ays devising  new m ethods of carry in g  on 
the details of h is work and never sacrificed q u a lity  for 
cheapness, or undertook contracts sim ply to swell h is 
annual output. As an employer of labour he won the 
avowed respect of the men in  h is own industry  and of all 
h is fellow employers. H e was an  enthusiastic  supporter 
of conciliatory  methods of dealing  w ith labour disputes. 
When the Belleville water-tube boilers were first in tro ­
duced into th is country there arose a serious dem arcation 
dispute between the engineers and boilerm akers on the 
question of w hich class of men should do certain  parts of the 
work. Mr. Dunlop was asked to act as a rb ite r in the 
d ispute, and so satisfactory was his finding th a t it was 
accepted unanim ously by a ll concerned and still rem ains 
the basis on w hich such work is done. He took a leading 
part in  the form ation of the E ng ineering  Em ployers’ Fed­
eration , and was a t different periods P residen t of the 
North-W est E ng ineering  T rades Em ployers’ Association. 
H is own firm, as a m atter of course, were members of the 
Clyde Shipbu ilders’ Association and of the Sh ipbu ild ing  
Em ployers’ Federation . H is employees in 1895, on the 
occasion of the sem i-jubilee of the firm, presented him 
with his p o rtra it in  oils as a  souvenir of the event.

The members of the In stitu te  of M arine E ngineers w ill 
have p leasant recollections of Mr. Dunlop as th e ir P re si­
dent in 1902. He was a member of the In stitu te  of E n g ­
ineers and Shipbuilders in S co tlan d ; a  vice-president of 
the Institu te  of Naval A rch itects; and a member of the 
Technical Committee of L loyd’s R egistry . He was un ­
m arried  and lived w ith  h is sister, M iss Dunlop, for whom 
much sym pathy has been felt in her bereavement.


